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HOWARD COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

POLICY & PROCEDURE 
 

 

SUBJECT:  Administration 

P & P #: A-031 

TITLE: Registration of Sex Offenders 

EFFECTIVE DATE: August 3, 2019 

REVIEWED BY:  
Andrea King-Wessels, Deputy Director 

AUTHORITY  
Jack Kavanagh, Director 

 

POLICY:  The Howard County Department of Correction shall comply with the 

registration requirements pertaining to certain qualified convicted sex offenders as defined in 

Maryland Criminal Procedure Articles §11-701. 

 

REFERENCES Maryland Criminal Procedure Articles §11-701; HCDC Policy C-203 

Release Procedures; B-105 Escape Procedures; K-101 Receiving Detainees and Policy K-110 

Commitments, Transfers and Releases. 
 

DEFINITIONS: 
 

Registrant: Anyone who is convicted of any of the qualifying offenses listed on the 

Registration Scheme under Maryland SORNA, attached as Appendix 1. 

 

MOSOR: Maryland Online Sex Offender Registry (Toll Free Phone Number 1-866-559-

8017). 
 

COMET: Collaborative Offender Management/Enforced Treatment. 
 

Release: Any type of release from Howard County Department of Corrections’ custody.  

“Release” includes parole, mandatory supervision, work release, and any type of temporary leave 

that is granted on an emergency basis.  For the purpose of this policy “release” does not include 

an escape. 
 

 

PROCEDURES: 
 

I. General Information 
 

A. The Howard County Department of Corrections cooperates with the Howard County 

Police Department, the States Attorney’s Office and the Maryland Department of 

Public Safety and Correctional Services to ensure all sex offender registration 

requirements are met.  The HCDC promotes sound management of sex offenders 

through active participation in COMET. 
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B. Howard County Department of Corrections has specific responsibilities for 

registration of sex offenders.  The Director has designated a Sex Offender Liaison, 

(SOL) to ensure that Department requirements are properly met. 

 

C. The Maryland Department of Public Safety and Correctional Services is the agency 

responsible for maintaining a statewide registry of sex offenders. 

 

D. A complete registration packet shall include: 

 

1. Fingerprint card with a Pre-Printed bar code, CJIS Form 006, Green and White, 

“8 X 8”, attached as Appendix #2; and photograph; or the electronic version of 

same, which can be obtained with Live Scan. 

 

2. Maryland Online Sex Offender Registration Form; CJIS Form 16A, attached as 

Appendix # 3. 

 

3. Maryland Notice of Sexual Offender Registration Requirements Form; CJIS Form 

16C, attached as Appendix # 4. 

 

II. Initial Identification and Registration 

 

Upon receipt of a sentencing commitment, the Commitment Officer shall review 

Appendix # 1, to determine if the inmate has been convicted of a qualifying offense. 

 

A. If convicted of a qualifying offense, the Commitment Officer shall: 

 

1. Stamp the cover of the inmate basefile with the “SOR” stamp. 

 

2. Notify by email, the Sex Offender Liaison and/or Designee, as well as the 

Classification Supervisor, Chief of Security, Deputy Director, and Director.  

Include in the email the inmate name and HCDC ID number, as well as the 

qualifying offense and sentence. 

 

B. The Sex Offender Liaison/Designee shall review the commitment to determine if the 

conviction requires registration.  Officials of the Court and MOSOR staff may be 

contacted for clarification or assistance.  The contact phone number for the Sex 

Offender Registry Unit is 410-585-3600 or 410-585-3649. 

 

C. If it is determined that the inmate does not require registration, the Sex Offender 

Liaison/designee, shall enter an alert on JMS; “Sex Offender Registration not 

required”; and strike through, initial, and date the SOR stamp on the cover of the 

basefile. 

 

D. If it is determined that the inmate requires registration, the Sex Offender 

Liaison/designee shall: 

 

1. Enter an alert on JMS “Sex Offender – Registration required.” 

 

2. Interview the inmate and following MOSOR guidelines and procedures, register 

the inmate providing as much detail as available. 
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3. Complete, print, and have the inmate sign a Maryland Online Sex Offender 

Registration (Appendix 3) and Notice of Sex Offender Registration Requirements 

(Appendix 4); placing the signed originals in the basefile.  The inmate shall be 

given a copy of Appendix 4. 

 

4 Notify Howard County Police, Sex Offender Unit, Detective Robert Rodriguez by 

phone (410-313-3331) or email (rrodriguez@howardcountymd.gov) and/or 

Detective Christopher Kolb (410-313-2697) or (Ckolb@howardcountymd.gov) 

advising that a new registrant has been placed in their electronic MOSOR folder, 

and it awaits their review, copy the Director on this email. 

 

a. Include in email and telephone communication to HCPD, inmate’s full name, 

Tier classification (shown in Appendix 1), and home address including 

County. 

 

b. Include in email and telephone communication reference any “default” or 

“unknown” fields that may need their corrective action, if known. 

 

c. The notification shall be documented in the inmate’s basefile. 

 

III. General Procedures upon Release of a Registrant 

 

A. Upon the release of any inmate, other than Work Release, the Shift Leader must 

determine, prior to release, whether the inmate is a registrant by checking the intake 

basefile to determine if there is a registered sex offender warning notice in place from 

the warrant check or an Appendix 4, in the basefile. 

 

1. If the basefile indicates that the inmate to be released is a registrant, the Shift 

Supervisor must complete the following: 

 

a. Notify the inmate of his obligation to register as a registrant.  Notification to 

the inmate shall be given by completing the Howard County Notice of 

Registration Requirement HCDC Form A-031a, attached as Appendix 5.  The 

signed original remains in the basefile, and a copy is given to the Inmate. 

 

b. If the inmate is a Howard County resident, notify Howard County Police Sex 

Offender Unit Detective Robert Rodriguez by phone (410-313-3331) or email 

(rrodriguez@howardcountymd.gov) and/or Detective Christopher Kolb  

(410-313-2697) or (Ckolb@howardcountymd.gov) 

 

c. If the inmate is a resident of another county or state notify the local law 

enforcement agency via email and telephone, using “Local Law Enforcement 

Contact List” attached as Appendix 6 or “State/Territory Sex Offender 

Registry agencies “attached as Appendix 7 (updates to these lists shall be 

maintained in the Commitment Office and by the Sex Offender 

Liaison/designee) of the release of the request.  This shall be documented in 

the inmate’s basefile. 

 

mailto:rrodriguez@howardcountymd.gov
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d. Notify the Sex Offender Liaison, Classification Supervisor, Security Chief, 

Deputy Director and Director via email. 

 

B. For guidance on release of arrestees from Central Booking Facility see HCDC Policy 

K-110 Commitments, Transfers and Releases. 

 

C. Work Release Assignment 

 

1. Participation in a work release program constitutes the "release" of an inmate for 

purposes of the notification requirements of Criminal Procedure Articles §11-701-

715. 

 

2. Prior to approving the participation of any inmate in a Work Release Program, the 

Work Release Coordinator shall determine whether the inmate is a registrant by 

checking the basefile for a completed Appendix 4 and/or if a warning notice from 

the warrant check that identifies the offender as a registered sex offender. 

 

a. If the inmate is a registrant, the Work Release Coordinator shall ensure the 

registrant’s employment/school information is updated on MOSOR before the 

inmate is placed on active work release status: and 

 

b. Shall wait for MOSOR update confirmation prior to first day of work. 

 

IV. Notification of Escape or Death of a Registrant 

 

A. In the event of the death of an inmate Registrant while in our custody, notification 

shall be made to the Maryland Sex Offender Registry by email at 

(soru.registration@atmaryland.gov) and (allison.gilford@maryland.gov) and 

telephone 410-585-3649 by the Shift Leader as soon as practical. 

 

B. In the event of the escape of an inmate Registrant, a prompt phone call shall be made 

to the Maryland Sex Offender Registry during business hours at 410-585-3649, 

followed up by an email by the Shift Leader as soon as practical. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Appendix 1, Registration Scheme under Maryland SORNA. 
 

Appendix 2, Fingerprint Card, CJIS Form 006. 
 

Appendix 3, Maryland Online Offender Registration, CJIS Form 16A. 
 

Appendix 4, Notice of Sex Offender Registration Requirements Form and 
CJIS Form 16C. 
 

Appendix 5, Howard County Notice of Registration Requirement, HCDC 
Form A-031a. 
 

Appendix 6, Maryland Local Law Enforcement Contact List. 
 

Appendix 7, State/Territory Sex Offender Registry Agencies. 

 
RESCISSIONS: HCDC Policy A-031, Registration of Sex Offenders, effective August 31, 

2017. 

mailto:allison.gilford@maryland.
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Registration Scheme Under Maryland SORNA 
Code Section                                                                        Offense Title                                                                                                                          Victim Age 

TIER I – 15 Year Registration 
CL § 3-308 or Art. 27 § 464C Sex Offense 4th Degree Any age 

CL § 3-902 or Art. 27 § 579B Visual Surveillance with Prurient Intent Less than 18 

CL § 11-208 or Art. 27 § 419B Possession of Child Pornography Less than 18 

18 USC § 2423(c) Engaging in illicit Conduct in Foreign Places NA 

18 USC § 2424 Failure to File Factual Statement about an Alien Individual NA 

18 USC § 2252B Misleading Domain Names on the Internet NA 

18 USC § 2252C Misleading Words or Digital Images on the Internet NA 

18 USC § 1591 Sex Trafficking by Force, Fraud or Coercion NA 

18 USC § 2425 Transmitting information about a minor to Further Criminal Sexual Conduct NA 

18 USC § 2423(b) Travel w/Intent to Engage in illicit Conduct NA 

Tier 1 includes all attempts to commit or conspiracies to commit any of the above offenses under the authority of Maryland Common Law. 

TIER II – 25 Year Registration 
CL § 11-305 or Art. 27 § 1 Abduction of a Child under 16 for Prostitution Less than 18 

CL § 11-207 or Art. 27 § 419A Distribution of Child Pornography Less than 18 

CL § 11-209 or Art. 27 § 420 Hiring a Minor for a Prohibited Purpose Less than 18 

CL § 11-306 or Art. 27 § 431 House of Prostitution Less than 18 

CL § 11-303 or Art. 27 § 428 Human Trafficking (Formerly Pandering) or Pandering Less than 18 

CL § 3-603 or Art. 27 § 35E Sale of a Minor 14, 15, 16, 17 

CL § 3-314 or Art. 27 § 464G Sexual Conduct between a Correctional or DJS employee and an inmate or confined child 14, 15, 16, 17 

CL § 3-307(A)(4) or Art. 27 § 464B(4) Sex Offense 3rd Degree – (Sex Act – Offender is at least 4 years older than victim-Statutory Offense) 14, 15 

CL § 3-307(A)(5) or Art. 27 § 454B(5) Sex Offense 3rd Degree – (Vaginal Intercourse – Offender is at least 21 years old – Statutory Offense) 14, 15 

CL § 3-324 Sexual Solicitation of a Minor Less than 18 

Tier II includes all attempts to commit or conspiracies to commit any of the above offenses under the authority of Maryland Common Law 

TIER III – Lifetime Registration 

Art. 27 § 12A Assault with Intent to Rape, or Sexually Abuse Any age 

CL § 3-503 or Art. 27§ 2,338 Child Kidnapping – Under the age of 12 or Abduction of a Child under 12 Less than 14 

CL § 3-315 Continuing Course of Conduct w/ a child Less than 18 

Common Law False Imprisonment of a Minor Less than 18 

CL § 3-321 or Art. 27 § 553 Forcible Sodomy Any age 

CL § 3-323 or Art. 27 § 335 Incest Any age 

CL § 3-502 or Art. 27 § 337 Kidnapping Any age 

CL § 2-201(a)(4)(viii), (x) or(xi) or Art. 27 & 410 Murder w/intent to Rape, Sexually Offend, or Sexually Abuse a Minor Any age 

CL § 3-303 or Art. 27 § 462 Rape 1st Degree Any Age 

CL § 3-304 or Art. 27 § 463 Rape 2nd Degree Any age 

Art. 27 § 464E or Common Law Rape 3rd Degree or Common Law Rape Any age 

CL § 3-602 Sexual Abuse of a Minor Less than 18 

CL § 3-603 or Art. 27 § 35E Sale of a Minor Less than 14 

CL § 3-305 or Art. 27 § 464 Sex Offense 1st Degree Any age 

CL § 3-306 or Art. 27 § 464A Sex Offense 2nd Degree Any age 

CL § 3-307(a)(1) or Art. 27 § 464B(a)(1) Sex Offense 3rd Degree-Sexual contact without consent and at least 1 aggravating factor (force, threat, 

weapon, aided and abetted) 
Any age 

CL § 3-307(a)(2) or Art. 27 § 464B(a)(2) Sex Offense 3rd Degree-Sexual contact with a victim who is mentally defective or incapacitated, or 

physically incapacitated 
Any age 

CL § 3-307(a)(3) or Art. 27 § 464B(a)(3) Sex Offense 3rd Degree-Sexual contact with a victim less than 14 and offender is at least 4 years older Less than 14 

CL § 3-314 or Art. 27 § 464G Sexual Conduct between a Correctional or DJS employee and an inmate or confined child Less than 14 

CL § 3-322 or Art. 27 § 554 Forcible Unnatural or Perverted Practice Any age 

CL § 3-309 or Art. 27 § 464F(b) Attempted Rape 1st Degree Any age 

CL § 3-310 or Art. 27 § 464F(a) Attempted Rape 2nd Degree Any age 

CL § 3-311 or Art. 27 § 464F(b) Attempted Sex Offense 1st Degree Any age 

CL § 3-312 or Art. 27 § 464F(a) Attempted Sex Offense 2nd Degree Any age 

Tier III includes all attempts to commit or conspiracies to commit any of the above offenses under the authority of Maryland Common Law. 
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Appendix 3 to HCDC Policy A-031 Registration of Sex Offender 

Department of Public Safety & Correctional Services 

Maryland Online Sex Offender Registration

DEMOGRAPHIC 

 First Name Middle Name Last Name  Suffix Maiden Name 

    

 
DOB: 

Sec #: 

 

Soc Sec #: 

 

Sex: 
 

. 
 

Race: 

 

Eye Color: 

 Hair Color: 

 

Skin Tone: 

 

Height:   FT     IN 

 

 

Weight: 

 Birth Country: 

 

Birth City/State/Province: 

 

Citizenship: 

 Telephone Number: 

 

 

DL State:         Driver 

 

Driver’s License # : 
 

DL Exp. Year: 

 Scars, Marks, Tattoos: 

Alias Names, DOB, SS#: 

Misc. Information: 

OFFENSE 

 Conviction Jurisdiction: Conviction County: Sex Offense: 

Offense Date: Conviction Date: Miscellaneous (weapon type, crime description, etc): 

Victim Age at Date of Offense:  Was the Conviction a  If PBJ,  

REGISTRATION 

 
Initial Regis   Re-Regis.  Life   25 Year  15 Year  

Offense Category:   Tier I    Tier II    Tier III 

Current Reg. Date: Current Reg. Exp. Date: Initial Reg. Date: Release Date: 

Court Designated Sexually Violent Predator?   Y     N Homeless?   Y    N  Weekly Registration Required 

Resident Status:  MD Resident        Non-Resident Employed in MD        Non-resident Student          Visitor to MD 

 
This offender was subject to registration under MD Law on Sept. 30, 2010 based on:  Choose One 

This offender is subject to SORNA retroactive registration and a retroactive term based on which of the following? 

Choose One 

ADDRESS (PRIMARY) 

 State: County: City: Zip Code: 

Street Number: 
 

Dir: 
 

Street Name: Suffix: 
 

Apt/Unit #: 

 
Miscellaneous: 
 

 

 

Current Address?   Y   N 
 

Primary Address?   Y   N 
 If registrant is homeless  

give description of physical location(s): 
EMPLOYMENT/SCHOOL 

 Organization Name:  

 
State: County: City: Zip Code: 

Street Number: Dir: Street Name: Suffix:                    Apt/Unit #: 

Employment Status:   Employed Employed at a School   Student    Volunteer Current?   Y   N Primary?  Y   N 

VEHICLE 

 
Tag Registration State VIN# Make Model Color Year 

I certify that I have been advised of: (1) my responsibilities under the State law concerning the registration of sex offenders (MD Code Ann., 

Criminal Proc. Art 11-701 through 11-722; and the (2) penalties for violations of that law. 

 

 

●  ATTACH PHOTOGRAPH 

●  ATTACH STATE FINGERPRINT CARD (CJIS 006) 

  

Printed Name of Agency Official 
 

ID# 
 

Agency Name 
 

Date 
 

FORMCJIS* 16A(Rev. 10/01/2010) 

 

CJHS USE ONLY 
SID#___________ 

FBI#___________ 

Registrant's Signature    Date 
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Department of Public Safety & Correctional Services 

Maryland Online Sex Offender Registration

REGISTRATN’S NAME:        ,     

ADDITIONAL DEMOGRAPHICS 

Scars, Marks, Tattoos: 
 
 

Alias Names, DOB, SS#: 
 
 

ADDITIONAL OFFENSES 

ADDITIONAL OFFENSE - SECONDARY 

Conviction Jurisdiction: Conviction County: Sex Offense: 

Offense Date: Conviction Date: Miscellaneous (weapon type, crime description, etc. 

Victim Age at Date of Offense:  

ADDITIONAL OFFENSE - TERITIARY 

Conviction Jurisdiction: Conviction County: Sex Offense: 

Offense Date: Conviction Date: Miscellaneous (weapon type, crime description, etc); 

Victim Age at Date of Offense:   

ADDITIONAL ADDRESS (Secondary or Temporary) 

State: County: City: Zip Code: 

Street Number: Dir: Street Name: Suffix: Zip Code: 

Miscellaneous:   

If registrant is homeless give a 

Description of physical location(s): 

ADDITIONAL EMPLOYMENT/SCHOOL 

Organization Name: 

State: County: City: Zip Code: 

Street Number: Dir: Street Name: Suffix: Apt/Unit#: 

  Primary?  

ADDITIONAL VEHICLES 

Tag  Registration State  VIN#  Make  Model  Color  Year  

Tag  Registration State  VIN#  Make  Model  Color  Year  

Tag  Registration State  VIN#  Make  Model  Color  Year  

INTERNET IDENTIFIERS 

Identifier 
 

 

Web Service Provider (e.g. AOL, My Space, World of Warcraft) Current   Primary 

       

Identifier 
 

 

Web Service Provider (e.g. AOL, My Space, World of Warcraft) Current   Primary 

       

Identifier 
 

 
Web Service Provider (e.g. AOL, My Space, World of Warcraft) Current   Primary 

       

PROFESSIONAL LICENSES 

Type: Expiration Date: State in Which Registrant is Licensed: 

Type: Expiration Date: State in Which Registrant is Licensed: 

Type: Expiration Date: State in Which Registrant is Licensed: 

 

Notes: 

 

 

Registrant’s Initials:     Date:      

Registration Official’s Initials:     Date:        

 

FORM CJIS# 16A (Rev. 10/01/2010) 
 

 

CJHS USE ONLY 
SID#___________ 

FBI#___________ 

 

Clear Form 
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STATE OF MARYLAND – DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND CORRECTIONAL SERVICES 
NOTICE OF SEX OFFENDER REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS 

Registrant’s Name: 

Registrant’s Address(es): 
 

In accordance with the provisions of the Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-701-11-722, of the Annotated, Code of Maryland, this is to 
notify you that you have been registered as one or more of the following: 
 

 Tier I Sex Offender Tier II Sex Offender Tier III Sex Offender Sexually Violent Predator Homeless 
 

Within three (3) days of any release from a correctional facility or to probation you must register with the designated law enforcement 
agency where you habitually live, to register or re-register in person under Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-705(c), Annotated Code of 
Maryland: 
 

Registering Agency: Address: 

Agency Contact Person: Telephone:                       ext. 
 

You must register in person every:  6 months for 15 years   6 months for 25 years   3 months for life   Every Week 
 

You must re-register on or before this date: 
 

This registration carries obligations that you must meet under State and Federal laws.  The following checked boxes apply to you: 
 

 You must register every address and physical location where you habitually live with your primary registration agency; and in each 
county where you habitually live, you must notify the designated local law enforcement unit that you habitually live in that county 
and provide the address or location.  Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-705(c). 

 

 If you become homeless you must register once a week in person in each county where you habitually live.  Criminal Procedure 
Article, § 11-705(d). 

 

 ALL RELEASES FROM ANY PERIOD OF INCARCERATION OR ARREST and All changes in your residence, employment, telephone 
numbers, internet identifiers, or vehicle information must be reported within 3 days of the change to each designated local law 
enforcement unit where you habitually live.  Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-705(e). 

 

 If you permanently move a jurisdiction outside Maryland or foreign country you must, 3 days prior to the change:  1) provide the 
new address, copies of passports, tickets, and travel itineraries to your primary registration agency; 2) register with the designated 
law enforcement agency of new jurisdiction; and 3) comply with any registration requirements in the new jurisdiction of residence.  
Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-705(h) & § 11-705(c)(3) 

 

 If you temporarily change residence for 5 or more days; or are absent from where you habitually live for more than 7 days, 
including travel for business or pleasure you must:  1) notify, in writing, each designated local law enforcement unit where you 
habitually live of your absence from the locations where you habitually live; 2) provide the addresses and locations of your 
temporary residences; and 3) provide the dates that you will be absent from the locations where you habitually live.  Copies of 
travel documents may be requested by law enforcement personnel.  Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-705(i) & § 11-705(c)(3) 

 

 If you begin or terminate employment in MD or another jurisdiction; or begin or end enrollment at an institution of higher 
education  you must also register with the designated law enforcement agency in that jurisdiction.  Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-
705(f)(1) and (2) 

 

 If you establish a new e-mail address, computer log-in or screen name or identity, instant-message identity or electronic chat room 
identity shall send written notice of the new information to the MD State Sex Offender Registry within 3 days of the change.  
Criminal Procedure Articles, § 11-705(i) 

 

 You may not knowingly enter onto real property that is used for public or nonpublic elementary or secondary education; or on 
which is located:  a registered Child Care Home or Child Care Institution.  A person who violates this section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor and on conviction is subject to imprisonment not exceeding five years or a fine not exceeding $5,000 or both.  
(Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-722) 

 

 If you are granted a legal change of name by court you must send written notice of the change within 3 days to each designated 
local law enforcement unit where you habitually live.  Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-705(g) 

 

Your birthdate, physical description, address, employment, vehicle and conviction information will be posted on the Sex 
Offender Registry website. 
 

If you fail to meet the requirements described above, you may be subject to criminal prosecution as follows: 
A registrant may not knowingly fail to register, knowingly fail to provide the written notice required under § 11-705 of this subtitle or 
knowingly provide false information of a material fact as required by this subtitle.  A registrant may not knowingly fail to provide the 
information required under §11-706 of this subtitle.  A person who violates these provisions for a first offense is guilty of a 
misdemeanor and on conviction is subject to imprisonment not exceeding 3 years or a fine not exceeding $5,000 or both, and for a 
second or subsequent offense, is guilty of a felony and on conviction is subject to imprisonment not exceeding5 years or a fine not 
exceeding $10,000 or both. 
 

I swear and affirm that I have read or have been read the above requirements and been provided a copy of this form.  I further 
understand that I must comply with Criminal Procedure Article §11-701 to 11-722 as it relates to my reporting and registration 
responsibilities and have been explained the penalties for violating such laws. 
 

                
Registrant’s Signature    Date   Official’s Signature  Date 
CJIS Form – 16C (Rev 12/10) 



STATE OF MARYLAND – DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND CORRECTIONAL SERVICES 
NOTICE OF SEX OFFENDER REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS 

 
 

Definitions for the Notice of Sex Offender Registration Requirements 
 
“Habitually Lives” means a place or location where a registrant lives, sleeps, or visits with any regularity, including 
where a homeless person is stationed during the day or sleeps at night.  “Habitually Lives” includes any place where a 
person visits for longer than 5 hours per visit more than 5 times within a 30 day period.  Criminal Procedure Article, § 
11-701(f) 
 
“Homeless” means having no fixed residence.  Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-701(g) 
 
“Jurisdiction” means a State or Native American Tribe that elects to function as a registration jurisdiction under 
Federal law.  Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-701(i) 
 
“Local Law Enforcement Unit” means the law enforcement unit in a county that has been designated by resolution of 
the county governing body as the primary law enforcement unit in the county.  Criminal Procedure Article, § 11-701(i) 
 
“Primary Registration Agency” means the local law enforcement unit that conducts a registrant’s periodic registration 
and is responsible for maintaining a registrant’s registration statement information.  COMAR 12.06.01.02(25) 
 
 
Notifications to the State Registry can be mailed to: 
 
Maryland Sex Offender Registry Unit 
P.O. Box 5743 
Pikesville, MD 21282-5743 
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       NOTICE        
 
 

IMPORTANT:  IF YOU ARE A PERSON WHO IS REQUIRED TO REGISTER AS A 
SEX OFFENDER, YOU MUST REGISTER OR RE-REGISTER IN PERSON WITH 
YOUR LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY AS SPECIFIED BELOW. 
 

If you are required to register as a Sex Offender in accordance with Criminal 
Procedure Article §11-701, et seq., you must register in person within three (3) 
days of your release from custody as follows: 
 

 If you will be living, working or attending school in Howard County upon your 
release, you must contact the Howard County Sex Offender Registry within 
three (3) days of your release to schedule a registration appointment.  To 
schedule an appointment, contact: 

 

• Detective Robert Rodriguez (rrodriguez@howardcountymd.gov) and/or 
Detective Christopher Kolb (Ckolb@howardcountymd.gov) or by phone (410-
313-3331 or 2697) of the Howard County Police Department. 
 

 If you will not be living, working or attending school in Howard County upon your 
release, you must contact the designated law enforcement agency in the 
county where you will reside, work or attend school. 

 

 Homelessness does not exempt you from registering or re-registering as a sex 
offender.  In other words, you must still register. 

 

 An individual who knowingly fails to register or re-register under Criminal 
Procedure Article §11-701, et seq., is subject to arrest for violation of the sex 
offender registry laws. 

 
***Registration must be completed within three (3) days of your release*** 
 

WARNING – You must register in person with the Howard County Police 

Sex Offender Registry.  Failure to comply with this notice and Criminal 
Procedure Article §11-701, et seq. will result in your physical arrest. 
 
 

               
Registrants Signature   Date    Officers Signature 
 

Copy: Inmate Basefile 

Inmate 

HCDC Form A-031a (Updated 12/4/18) 

mailto:rrodriguez@howardcountymd.gov
mailto:Ckolb@howardcountymd.gov


 

 

Allegany County Cumberland Police Dept. 
Combined Co. Investigation Unit (C3I) 

20 Bedford St, Cumberland, MD 21502 

(O) 301-759-6533  (F) 301-759-6515 

Cpl. Kevin Detrick kdetrick@alleganygov.org 

Alt:  Leah Brinkman 301-759-6546 

Leah.Brinkman@cumberlandmd.gov  

 

Anne Arundel County Police Dept. 
SexOffenderRegistry@aacounty.org 

41 Community Place 

Crownsville, MD  21032 

(F) 410-222-3414 

Det. Wood   410-222-3466     p91371@aacounty.org 

Sheila Ripley  410-222-8170   P96731@aacounty.org 

Det. Weiss    410-222-3750    p91261@aacounty.org  

 

Baltimore City Police Department 
SORU@BaltimorePolice.org  

SORU 242 W. 29th St, Baltimore, MD 21211-2908   

Hours: M-TH 8am -12pm 

(O)443-984-7388/89  (F) 410-243-8657 

D/Sgt Kirhagis    443-923-7063 

adamc.kirhagis@baltimorepolice.org 

 

Cases: A – C  

Det. Catterton -  443 923-7072 

Donald.Catterton@baltimorepolice.org 

Cases: D - HM 

Det. Dana Bell - 443-923-7067 

dana.bell@baltimorepolice.org 

Cases: HN - L 

Det. Ron Ogle - 443-923-7065 

ronald.ogle@baltimorepolice.org 

Cases:  M - P 

Det. John Moore- 443-923-7066 

John.Moore@BaltimorePolice.org 

Cases:  Q - S 

Det. Timothy Gardner 443 923-7069  

Timothy.Gardner@BaltimorePolice.org 

Cases: T - Z 

Det. Nate Cole – 443-923-7068 

Nathanial.cole@baltimorepolice.org  

 

 

Baltimore County Police Department 
Sex Offender Registry Team 

700 East Joppa Road 

Towson, MD 21286  

(O)410-887-5584 (F)410-887-6283   

D/Cpl. Larry Gick   LGick@baltimorecountymd.gov  

Rita Fitzpatrick      rfitzpatrick@baltimorecountymd.gov  

Det. Michael West  mwest@baltimorecountymd.gov 

 

Calvert County Sheriff’s Office 
30 Church Street 

Prince Frederick, MD 20678   

(F) 410-535-3159 

Lt. Timothy Fridman 410-535-2800x-2547 

fridmatk@co.cal.md.us 

Det. Mike Mudd 410-535-1600x2469 

muddmj@co.cal.md.us  

 

Caroline County Sheriff’s Office 
101 Gay Street, Denton, MD  21629 

(O) 410-479-2515 (F) 410-479-4128  

Deputy Cathy Jones 410-479-4004  

cjones@carolinemd.org 

Det. Brian Peris  410-479-5027 

bperis@carolinemd.org  

 

Carroll County Sheriff’s Office 
Investigative Services Bureau 

100 N. Court St. Westminster, MD 21157 

(O)  410-386-2900 (F) 410-876-1152   

Cpl. Chris McMillen 410-386-2895 

Cmcmillen@ccg.carr.org  

 

Cecil County Sheriff’s Office 
107 Chesapeake Blvd, Suite 112 

Elkton, MD 21921  (F)410-996-5518 

Det. Cunningham  410-392-2126   

Michael.Cunningham@ccdps.org 

Alt. Det. Price 410-392-2124  

Tyler.Price@ccdps.org  
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Charles County Sheriff’s Office 
Criminal Investigation Division 

3670 Leonardtown RD  

Waldorf, MD  20601  (F) 301-609-6485  

Rhonda Hurt                  301-609-6503  

hurtr@ccso.us 

Det. George Higgs         301-609-6498 

higgsg@ccso.us 

Det. Rochelle Williams  301-609-6488 

williamsrl@ccso.us  

 

Dorchester County Sheriff’s Office 
829 Fieldcrest RD, Cambridge, MD  21613 

(F) 410-228-9869  

Deputy Keith Benton  410-228-4141 

kbenton@docosheriff.org 

 

Frederick County Sheriff’s Office 
110 Airport Dr. E., Frederick, MD 21701  

(F) 301-600-3699   

Brandy Keyser  301-600-3660  

bkeyser@frederickcountymd.gov 

Alt. Det.  Skelley  301-600-4017 

jskelley@frederickcountymd.gov 

 

Garrett County Sheriff’s Office 
311 E. Alder St, Oakland, MD 21550  

(F) 301-334-5030) 

Sgt. Geroski 301-334-1905 

egeroski@garrettcounty.org 

 

Harford County Sheriff’s Office 
45 S. Main St., Bel Air, MD  21014 

(O) 410-638-3168  (F) 410-638-2606   

Inv. Jennifer Berglund  Cases: A - N 

berglundj@harfordsheriff.org 

Inv. Stanley Siedlecki   Cases: O - Z 

siedleckis@harfordsheriff.org  
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Howard Co. Police Department 
3410 Courthouse Dr., Ellicott City, MD  21043 

(O) 410-313-1433 (F) 410-313-2633 

D/Sgt. Miller 410-313-1433 

amiller@howardcountymd.gov   

Det. Penelope Camp 410-313-2767 

pcamp@howardcountymd.gov  

Det. Tambra Weigman 410-313-3331 

tweigman@howardcountymd.gov  

 

Kent County Sheriff’s Office 
CID 104 Vickers Drive, Unit B, Chestertown, MD  

21620 

(F) 410-778-7488  

Lt. Dennis Hickman  410-778-2279 

 dhickman@kentgov.org 

Alt: Sgt. Stuart Lodge  410-810-2265 

slodge@kentgov.org  

 

Montgomery County Police  
Dept. SVID/Child Exploitation & Registry Section 7300 

Calhoun Place #300 Rockville, MD  20855 

(O) 240-773-5400  (F) 240-773-5405  

Contact : Det. Parker 240-773-5416  

Michael.Parker@montgomerycountymd.gov 

Shelley Lipton  240-773-5414 

Shelley.Lipton@montgomerycountymd.gov 

Robbi McDonald  240-773-5053 

Robbi.McDonald@montgomerycountymd.gov  

Jim Cunningham  240-773-5466 

richard.cunningham@montgomerycountymd.gov 

Ron Collins - 240-773-5440 

james.collins@montgomerycountymd.gov 

Det. Holly Ryan - 240-773-5436 

Holly.ryan@montgomerycountymd.gov 

 

Prince George’s Co. Police Dept. 
7600 Barlow RD, Landover, MD  20785  

(O) 301-583-7128 (F) 301-583-0795   

Contact: Sgt. Katie Hart  301-772-4962  

KLHart@co.pg.md.us 

Cpl. Paul Campbell  301-772-4683 

PWCampbell@co.pg.md.us 

Det. Stephen Knight  301-772-4680 

seknight@co.pg.md.us  

Det. Loretta Williams  301-772-4252 

lxwilliams@co.pg.md.us  

 

Queen Anne’s Co. Sheriff’s Office 
505 Railroad Ave, Centreville, MD  21617   

ciu@qac.org (F) 410-758-1961  

Cpl.   Shane Russell 410-758-0770 ext.1216 

srussell@qac.org 

1st/Sgt. M. Jones, Jr 410-758-0770x1212  

mjones@qac.org  

 

Somerset County Sheriff’s Office 
30426A Sam Barnes Road 

Westover, MD  21871-3302 

(O) 410-651-9225 (F)410-651-1142   

Contact: Cpl. Adam Stanley  astanley@somersetmd.us  

 

St. Mary’s County Sheriff’s Office 
23150 Leonard Hall Dr, Leonardtown, MD  20650  

(O) 301-475-4200 (F) 301-475-4075   

Contact: Det. Hulse 301-475-4200*1996 

Melissa.Hulse@stmarysmd.com  

Alt.: Hailey Schultz 301-475-4200*1948 

Hailey.Schultz@stmarysmd.com  

 

Talbot County Sheriff’s Office 
115 West Dover ST Easton, MD  21601 

(F) 410-770-8110) 

Cpl. Marlene Gieraltowski  

410-822-1020   

MGieraltowski@talbotcountymd.gov  

 

Washington County Sheriff’s Office 
Sex Offender Registrar 500 Western Maryland Pkwy., 

Hagerstown, MD 21740   (F) 240-313-2105   

Contact: Paula Kriner  240- 313- 2169 

pkriner@washco-md.net 

Alt: Michael Kretzer 240-313-2169  

 

Wicomico County Sheriff’s Office 
401 Naylor Mill Rd, Salisbury, MD  21804  

(O) 410-548-4891 (F) 410-548-4968  

Contact: DFC Kenneth Pusey 410-548-4892 ext. 257 

kpusey@wicomicocounty.org 

Alt:  Sgt. Anthony Glenn 

410-548-4892    Ext. 239 

tglenn@wicomicocounty.org 

 

 

Worcester County Sheriff’s Office 
1 West Market Street, Rm. 1001  Snow Hill, MD  21863  

(F) 410-632-3070  Supervisor:  Det./ Cpl. Alex Kagan  

(ICAC) (O) 410-632-1111 akagan@co.worcester.md.us  

Contact: Det. Kathy McCauley 443-366-2432  

kmccauley@co.worcester.md.us  

 

MD State SORU 
(O)410-585-3600 (F) 410-653-5690 

Hours of Operation  M-F   8-4:30pm        

Manager: Kathleen Paul 410-585-3604 

Kathleen.Paul@maryland.gov 

Allison Gilford 410-585-3649 

Allison.Gilford@maryland.gov 

Sophia Horowitz        410-585-3654 

Sophia.Horowitz@maryland.gov  

Chad Nelson               410-585-3677 

Chad.Nelson@maryland.gov  

Jackie Nelson             410-585-3640 

Marianna.Nelson@maryland.gov  

Ryan Smith                 410-585-3656 

Ryan.Smith@maryland.gov 
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Alabama Law Enforcement Agency

Sex Offender Registry

P.O. Box 1511

Montgomery, AL  36102-1511

Ms. Audrey McMullen

334-353-1172 334-353-2563 sexoffenderunit@alea.gov http://app.alea.gov/community/wfsexoffende

rsearch.aspx

A
LA

SK
A

A
K

A
ST

1
5

0
0

Department of Public Safety 

Division of Statewide Services 

Sex Offender Central Registry 

5700 E. Tudor Road 

Anchorage, AK  99507-1225

Ms. Lorena Bukovich-Notti, Project Coordinator 

Ms. Alice Poncho, Criminal Justice Technician 

Svetlana Zagonenko, Criminal Justice Technician

Mackenzie Gilpin, Criminal Justice Technician

907-269-5550

907-269-0396

907-269-0397

907-269-0395

907-269-0394 sor@dps.state.ak.us www.dps.alaska.gov/sorweb/sorweb.aspx

A
R
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N
A

A
ZD

P
S1

9
0

0

Arizona Department of Public Safety 

SOCU 

Mail Code 9999 

P.O. Box 6638 

Phoenix, AZ  85005 

Ms. Shari Dahlback, Administrative Supervisor

602-255-0611 

602-223-2099

602-223-2949 soct@azdps.gov 

sdahlback@azdps.gov
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0
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0
0
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Arkansas Crime Information Center 

322 Main St. 

Suite 615 

Little Rock, AR  72201 

Ms. Lesa Winston, Administrator of Repository Division 

Ms. Paula Gray Stitz, Manager Sex Offender Registry

501-682-2222 

501-682-7440

501-682-7441

501-682-7753 

501-683-5592

501-682-2269 lesa.winston@acic.arkansas.gov

paula.stitz@acic.arkansas.gov
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Sex Offender Tracking Program

California Department of Justice

P.O. Box 903387 

Sacramento, CA  94203-3870

Ms. Linda Schweig, Manager

916-210-3113 916-227-4345 casex-reg@doj.ca.gov

C
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D

O

C
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C
B

I0
0

0
0

Colorado Bureau of Investigation

Attn:  Sex Offender Registry

690 Kipling Street, #4000

Denver, CO  80215

Ms. Kristie Mahler, SOR Supervisor

303-239-4222 303-239-4661 cdps.cbi.sor@state.co.us sor.state.co.us
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C
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0

Connecticut Department of Public Safety

SOR-Unit

1111 Country Club Road

Middletown, CT  06457

Sgt. Matthew Garcia, Sex Offender

Registration Unit

860-685-8075 860-772-1730

860-685-8349

ct.sor.ledirect@ct.gov

matthew.garcia@ct.gov
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R

E

D
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0

0
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Delaware State Police

655 South Bay Road

Suite 1B

Dover, DE  19901

Sgt. Bruce Harris, Sex Offender Apprehension and 

Registration Unit

Ms. Tamara Baldwin, Administrative Supervisor

302-739-5882

302-672-5371

302-739-5888 dsp_sbisorrequest@state.de.us www.state.de.us/dsp.sexoff
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Court Services & Offender Supervision Agency

(CSOSA)

300 Indiana Avenue, NW

RM 2070

Washington, DC  20001

Metropolitan Police Department

300 Indiana Avenue, NW

Room 3009

Washington, DC  20001

Sr. Ofc. Barry Fine

Sr. Sgt. Mustafa Haamid

Sr. Det. Derek Bolding

202-585-7245

202-727-4407

202-727-6063

202-727-6123

202-585-7306

202-727-9292

sorhelp@csosa.gov

barry.fine@dc.gov

mustafa.haamid@dc.gov

derek.bolding@dc.gov
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Florida Department of Law Enforcement

Enforcement and Investigative Support

P.O. Box 1489

Tallahassee, FL  32302-1489

Ms. Mary Coffee, Policy and Planning Administrator

Mr. Alan Moses, Senior Management

Analyst Supervisor

888-357-7332

850-410-8572

850-410-8599 sexpred@fdle.state.fl.us
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Georgia Bureau of Investigation

P.O. Box 370748

Decatur, GA  30037-0748

Ms. Ann Elliott, Sex Offender Registry

Program Supervisor

404-270-8465

404-270-8622

404-270-8470

404-270-8452 gcicsexoffenders@gbi.ga.gov www.gbi.georgia.gov
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0
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Y

Department of the Attorney General

Hawaii Criminal Justice Data Center

465 South King Street

Room 102

Honolulu, HI  96813

Ms. Jennifer N. Bishop, Supervisor Sex Offender 

Registration Unit

808-587-3350

808-587-3349

808-587-3024 ag.hcjdc.sor@hawaii.gov
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Idaho State Police

Bureau of Criminal Identification

700 S. Stratford Dr.

Ste 120

Meridian, ID  83642

Ms. Carol Redding, Criminal Records

Supervisor - SOR

208-884-7305 208-884-7193 idsor@isp.idaho.gov www.isp.idaho.gov/sor_id
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Illinois State Police

801 South 7th Street

Suite 200-S

Springfield, IL  62703

Ms. Tracie Newton, SOR Program Administrator

217-785-0653 217-782-4996 sor_unit@isp.state.il.us

tracie_newton@isp.state.il.us

www.isp.state.il.us/sor
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0
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Indiana Department of Correction

Indiana Sex and Violent Offender Registry

Indiana Government Center-South

302 W. Washington Street

Room E334

Indianapolis, IN  46204-2738

Mr. Brent Myers, Sex and Violent Offender Registry

317-232-1232 317-234-1953 svor@idoc.in.gov www.insor.org
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C
I0

0
0
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Sex Offender Registry Unit

Iowa Division of Criminal Investigation

215 East 7th Street

Des Moines, IA  50319

Mr. Bret Braafhart, Special Agent in Charge

Ms. Karin Hamilton, Public Service Supervisor

515-725-6050

515-725-6037

515-725-6038

515-725-6040 sorinfo@dps.state.ia.us

khamilto@dps.state.ia.us

www.iowasexoffender.com

K
A

N
SA

S

K
SK

B
I0

0
0

0

Offender Registration

Kansas Bureau of Investigation

1620 SW Tyler

Topeka, KS  66612-1837

Mr. John Gauntt, Supervisor

785-296-2841 785-296-6781 registered_offender@kbi.kansas.gov http://www.kbi.ks.gov/registeredoffender

Page 4 9/13/2018



National Sex Offender Registry Points of Contacts

9/13/2018

ORI AGENCY/ADDRESS PHONE FAX EMAIL WEBSITE

K
EN

TU
C

K
Y

K
Y

K
SP

3
6

0
0

Criminal Identification and Records

Kentucky State Police

1266 Louisville Road

Frankfort, KY  40601

Ms. Megan Metcalf

502-227-8700 502-564-9555

serenity.metcalf@ky.gov

http://kspsor.state.ky.us/
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N
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2

State Police of Criminal Identification

and Information

P.O. Box 66614

Baton Rouge, LA  70896

Mail Slip A-6

Ms. Pamela Carolina, Sex Offender

Registry Supervisor

800-858-0551

225-925-4243

225-925-4140 socpr@dps.la.gov www.lsp.org
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M
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P
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State Bureau of Identification

Sex Offender Registry

45 Commerce Drive

SHS 42

Augusta, Maine  04330

Mr. Matthew Ruel, Director

Mr. Greg Paquet, Supervisor

207-624-7241

207-624-7262

207-287-3421

matthew.r.ruel@maine.gov

gregory.v.paquet@maine.gov

www.maine.gov/sor
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Department of Public Safety and

Correctional Services

CJIS--Sex Offender Registry Unit

P.O. Box 5743

Pikesville, MD  21282-5743

Mrs. Kathleen Paul-Kersheskey, Manager

Ms. Allison Gilford, SOR Supervisor

410-585-3600

410-585-3604

410-585-3649

410-653-5690

kathleen.paul@maryland.gov

allison.gilford@maryland.gov
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Sex Offender Registry Board

P.O. Box 4547

Salem, MA  01970

Mr. Richard T. Mercurio, Director of Registration

Mr. Scott Bucuzzo, Reg & Classification Specialist

Mr. Dave Foderaro, Reg & Classification Specialist

978-740-6511

978-740-6531

978-740-6510

978-740-6464

richard.mercurio@state.ma.us

scott.bucuzzo@state.ma.us

david.foderaro@state.ma.us

www.mass.gov/sorb
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Michigan State Police

Sex Offender Registry Unit

P.O. Box 30634

Lansing, MI  48909

Ms. Elizabeth Arritt, Unit Manager SOR

Ms. Heidi Zens, Departmental Technician

Ms. Tina Dietrich, Departmental Technician

517-241-1806 517-241-1868 psors@michigan.gov www.mipsor.state.mi.us

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

M
N

B
C

A
0

0
0

2

Minnesota Bureau of Criminal Apprehension

Predatory Offender Registration Unit

1430 Maryland Avenue East

St. Paul, MN  55106

Mr. Scott Mueller, Special Agent in Charge

of the POR Unit

Ms. Katie Meiers, Supervisor

888-234-1248 

651-793-7070

651-793-1129

651-793-7050

651-793-7071 dps.mnregistry@state.mn.us

scott.d.mueller@state.mn.us

kathryn.meiers@state.mn.us

www.dps.state.mn.us/bca
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Mississippi Criminal Information System

Mississippi Bureau of Investigation

3891 Highway

468W

Pearl, MS  39208

Ms. Charlie Hill, Director MS Sex Offender Registry

Ms. Tamica Butler, Northern MS

Ms. Joyce Grant, Central MS

Ms. Lori Jones

601-933-2600

601-933-2643

601-933-2694

601-933-2622

601-933-2695 msor@mdps.state.ms.us

tsbutler@dps.ms.gov

jgrant@dps.ms.gov

ljones@dps.ms.gov

www.sor.mdps.state.ms.us
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Missouri State Highway Patrol

1510 East Elm Street

Jefferson City, MO  65101

P.O. Box 9500

Jefferson City, MO  65102

Lt. Steve Frisbie, Assistant Director

Mr. Scott Schlueter, CJIS Program Manager

Ms. Tammy Byrd, Sex Offender Registry Supervisor

888-767-6747

573-526-7199

573-526-6347

573-522-7668 mosor@mshp.dps.mo.gov

scott.schlueter@mshp.dps.mo.gov

tammy.byrd@mshp.dps.mo.gov
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A

M
T0

2
5
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3

5
Y

Department of Justice 

Division of Criminal Investigation

P.O. Box 201417

Helena, MT  59620

Mr. Gary Seder, Chief Crime Information Bureau

Ms. Jamie Lavinder, SVOR Analyst

Ms. Suzanne Anders, SVOR Analyst

406-444-9759

406-444-7068

406-444-9877

406-444-2759

jlavinder@mt.gov

smanders@mt.gov

www.doj.mt.gov/svor

N
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R
A

SK
A

N
B

N
SP

0
0

0
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Nebraksa State Patrol

Sex Offender Registry

P.O. Box 94907

Lincoln, NE  68509-4907

Ms. Andi Hart, Sex Offender Registry Crime Analyst

402-471-8647

402-471-8640

402-471-8496 nsp.sor@nebraska.gov

andi.hart@nebraska.gov

https://sor.nebraska.gov
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V
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0

0

Department of Public Safety

General Services Division

333 W. Nye Lane

Suite 100

Carson City, NV  89706

Mr. Patrick Saunders, Program Officer II

Ms. Chelsea Ross, Program Officer II

Mr. Adam Anderson, Program Officer I

775-684-6297

775-684-6296

775-684-0913

775-687-3237

psaunders@dps.state.nv.us

cross@dps.state.nv.us

aanderson@dps.state.nv.us

www.nvsexoffenders.gov
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New Hampshire State Police

Sex Offender Registry

33 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH  03305

Sgt. Rebecca Eder-Linell, Unit Commander

Ms. Melissa Heiss, Paralegal

603-223-3870 603-271-1758

rebecca.eder-linell@dos.nh.gov

melissa.heiss@dos.nh.gov

www.state.nh.us/safety/nhsp

N
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Y

N
JN
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0
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0

Division of State Police

I & IT Section

SBI

P.O. Box 7068

West Trenton, NJ  08628-0068

Sgt. R Schaffter, Unit Head Record

Assembly Unit (Megan's Law)

Tpr. I J. McGee, Record Assembly Unit

(Megan's Law)

609-882-2000

ext 2934

ext 2493

ext 2369

609-883-9236 soregistry@gw.njsp.org

lpp6427@gw.njsp.org

lpp7130@gw.njsp.org

www.njsp.org
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Department of Public Safety

P.O. Box 1628

Santa Fe, NM  87504

4491 Cerrillos Rd

Santa Fe, NM  87504

Ms. Regina Chacon, Bureau Chief

Ms. Katherine Garcia, SORNA Coordinator

505 827-3354

505 476-2438

505 827-3399

regina.chacon@state.nm.us

katherine.garcia@state.nm.us

https://www.dps.nm.gov/public-

information/sex-offender-registry
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Y

New York Division of Criminal

Justice Services

Sex Offender Registry

80 S. Swan St.

Albany, NY  12210

Ms. Michelle Mulligan, Project Director

Ms. Corinna Gordon

518-417-3385 518-485-5805

518-485-8786

518-474-8464

sorrequests@dcjs.ny.gov

michelle.mulligan@dcjs.ny.gov

corinna.gordon@dcjs.ny.gov
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NC State Bureau of Investigation

Criminal Information and Identification Section

Sex Offender Coordination Unit

P.O. Box 29500

Raleigh, NC  27626-0500

Ms. Lisa R. Britton, Supervisor Sex Offender

Coordination Unit

Ms. Ivy McMillan, Assistant Special Agent in Charge

919-582-8670 919-582-8394

919-662-4619

sorhelp@ncsbi.gov www.sexoffender.ncsbi.gov
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D
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C

A
0

0
0

0

Bureau of Criminal Investigation

P.O. Box 1054

Bismarck, ND  58502-1054

Mr. Mark A. Sayler, Chief Agent

Ms. Mandy Mildenberger, Administrative Asst.

Ms. Jessie Kershaw, Administrative Asst.

Ms. Kaylonnie Conley, Administrative Asst.

701-328-5500

701-328-6522

701-328-5536

701-328-5561

701-328-5510 agoso@nd.gov www.sexoffender.nd.gov

O
H

IO

O
H

B
C

I0
0

0
0

Bureau of Criminal Investigation

OHLEG (Sex Offender Unit)

P.O. Box 365

1560 St. Rt. 56 SW

London, OH  43140

Mr. Stephen Brown, Supervisor OHLEG Technical 

Support

866-406-4534 866-750-0233 ohlegsupport@ohioattorneygeneral.gov

O
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A

O
K

0
5
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0
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C

Oklahoma Department of Corrections

Sex and Violent Offender Registration Unit

P.O. Box 11400

Oklahoma City, OK  73136-0400

Ms. Cheri Bolz, Coordinator

405-425-7601 405-425-7070 osor@doc.ok.gov
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Oregon State Police 

Criminal Investigations Division

Sex Offender Registration Section

3565 Trelstad Avenue

South Salem, OR  97317

Lt. Mark Cotter, Director

Ms. Jessica Merino, Assistant Manager

Mr. Andrew Mendenhall, Program Analyst

503-934-1258 503-378-6300 sexoffender.questions@state.or.us www.oregon.gov/osp/sor/pages/index.aspx

P
EN

N
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LV
A

N
IA

P
A

P
SP
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C

0
0

Pennsylvania State Police

Bureau of Records and Identification

Megan's Law Section

1800 Elmerton Avenue

Harrisburg, PA  17110

Sgt. O.E. Rowles

Trp. Sean R. Geibel

717-783-4363 717-705-8839 sgeibel@state.pa.us

R
H

O
D

E 
IS

LA
N

D

R
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0

0
0

0

Rhode Island State Police

Rhode Island State Offender Registry

311 Danielson Pike

North Scituate, RI  02857

Ms. Celeste Richard

Detective Kyle Shibley

401-764-5900 401-444-1355 risor@risp.gov
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South Carolina Law Enforcement Division

CJIS/Data Center

P.O. Box 21398

Columbia, SC  29221-1398

Mr. Belton Garner, SOR Coordinator

803-896-8951 803-896-2311

803-896-7022

offend.registration@sled.sc.gov www.sled.sc.gov
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South Dakota Office of the Attorney General

Division of Criminal Investigation

1302 East Highway 14

Suite 5

Pierre, SD  57501

Ms. Peggy Nickerson, Sex Offender Compliance 

Coordinator

Ms. Ashley Long, SOR Data Analyst

605-773-2596

605-773-6159

605-773-2235 atg.sdsor@state.sd.us

peggy.nickerson@state.sd.us

ashley.long@state.sd.us

www.sor.sd.gov
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E
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0
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0

Criminal Intelligence Unit

Sex Offender Registry

Tennessee Bureau of Investigation

901 R.S. Gass Boulevard

Nashville, TN  37216-2639

Ms. Shelly Smitherman, Assistant Special

Agent in Charge

844-824-7678 615-744-4655 tbisormgr@tn.gov www.tbi.tn.gov

TE
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S

TX
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Texas Department of Public Safety

Sex Offender Registration Program

MSC 0230

P.O. Box 4143

Austin, TX  78765-4143

Mr. Vincent Castilleja, Sex Offender Registration 

Coordinator

512-424-2279

512-424-2800

512-424-7702 txsor@dps.texas.gov http://records.txdps.state.tx.us
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Sex Offender Registry Unit

Department of Corrections

14717 Minuteman Drive

Draper, UT  84020

Ms. Jennifer Calvo, Sex Offender Registration 

Correctional Program Coordinator II

Ms. Cyrese Zimmerman, Support Service

Coordinator

Ms. Nickole Lavery, Program Specialist

Ms. Bekka Dominguez, Program Specialist

801-495-7700

801-495-7716

801-495-7703

801-495-7709

801-495-7700

801-523-7525 registry@utah.gov

jcalvo@utah.gov

czimmerman@utah.gov

nlavery@utah.gov

bdominguez@utah.gov
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Vermont Crime Information Center

45 State Drive

Waterbury, VT  05671

Ms. Wendy Perreault, Sex Offender

Registry Coordinator

802-241-5400 802-241-5552

wendy.perreault@vermont.gov

vcic.vermont.gov

V
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V
A

V
SP

0
0
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0

Virginia Department of State Police

P.O. Box 27472

Richmond, VA  23261

Mr. Kai Wiggins, Sex Offender Helpdesk

Ms. Lonnice Dupree

804-674-2825

804-674-3088

804-674-8529

kai.wiggins@vsp.virginia.gov

lonnice.dupree@vsp.virginia.gov
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W
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0
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Washington State Patrol

Sex Offender Registry

P.O. Box 42633

Olympia, WA  98504-2633

Ms. Kimberly McParland, Supervisor Sex Offender 

Registry Unit

360-534-2000

360-534-2163

360-534-2071 sorsubmissions@wsp.wa.gov

kimberly.mcparland@wsp.wa.gov
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West Virginia State Police

701 Jefferson Road

South Charleston, WV  25309

Ms. Terri L. Swecker, Coordinator Sex Offender and Child 

Abuse Registry

Ms. Christy Henderson

Ms. Susan Gandee

304-746-2133

304-746-2256

304-746-2257

304-746-2437

terri.l.swecker@wvsp.gov

christy.l.henderson@wvsp.gov

susan.r.gandee@wvsp.gov
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Wisconsin Department of Corrections

P.O. Box 7925

Madison, WI  53707-7925

Ms. Grace Knutson, Director of Sex

Offender Programs

Mr. Erich Wuerslin, Supervisor

Ms. Cari Taylor, WI SOR Supervisor

608-240-5830

608-240-5879

414-777-0542

608-240-3355 bopadmin@doc.state.wi.us

docsafetips@doc.state.wi.us

erich.wuerslin@wisconsin.gov

cari.taylor@wisconsin.gov

www.doc.wi.gov
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Wyoming Sex Offender Registry 

Wyoming Division of Criminal Investigation

208 S. College Drive

Cheyenne, WY  82002

Mr. Eric Wiltanger, CJIS Section Supervisor

Ms. Jenny Stalo, Records Analyst

307-777-8554

307-777-8606

307-777-7301

304-777-7252

wysors@wyo.gov

eric.wiltanger1@wyo.gov

jenny.stalo1@wyo.gov

http://wysors.dci.wyo.gov
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Office of the Attorney General

P.O. Box 7

Pago Pago, American Samoa  96799

Sinu'u Toelupe, Sex Offender Registry

Program Manager

Eleitino Loi-On, Assistant Program Manager

684-633-4163

684-633-4164

684-633-4165

684-633-4964

684-633-1838

toelupes@la.as.gov

loione@la.as.gov
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Guam Judicial Center

Guam Sex Offender Registry Management Office

Probation Services Division

120 West O'Brien Drive

Hagatna, Guam  96910

Mr. Ruben Payumo, Senior Probation Officer

Ms. Erika L. Perez, Case Manager

Ms. Cassandra M. Carbullido, Case Manager

Ms. Gabrielle Aguon, Case Manager

671-475-3469

671-475-3460

671-300-6731

671-300-6732

671-477-4944

rpayumo@guamcourts.org

eperez@guamcourts.org

ccarbullido@guamcourts.org

gaguon@guamcourts.org

www.guamcourts.org/sor
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Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands

Department of Public Safety

P.O. Box 500791

Saipan, MP  96950

Ms. Rhonda John, Officer in Charge of Sex Offenders 

Registry

Sergeant Jason T. Tarkong, Police Officer II

670-664-9027

24 hours

670-285-9026

24 hours

rjohn@dps.gov.mp

jtarkong@dps.gov.mp

www.dps.gov.mp
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Department of Justice

P.O. Box 9020192

San Juan, PR  00902-0192

Ms. Denisse M. Cintron-Rodriguez, Administrative 

Director

Mr. Eduardo Cancel, PR CJIS Adm. Subdirector

Lt. Victor A. Castro-Pabon, 

Puerto Rico PD

Sgt. Jose C. Rosario, Puerto Rico PD

Agent Brendan Gonzalez

Agent Marially Vazquez

787-729-2121

787-793-1234

787-793-3218

787-793-2233

787-729-2261

dmcintron@cjis.pr.gov

vacastro@policia.pr.gov

jcrosario@policia.pr.gov

bmgonzalez@policia.pr.gov

mvazquez@policia.pr.gov

sor.cjis.pr.gov

U
S 

V
IR

G
IN

 IS
LA

N
D

S

V
I0

0
1

0
5

7
A

Virgin Islands Department of Justice

3438 Kronprindsens Gade

GERS Building, Second Floor

St. Thomas, US Virgin Islands  00802

Ms. Shani Pinney, Virgin Islands

Department of Justice

Mr. Kevin Augustin, SOR Investigator

340-774-5666

 ext 191

340-773-0295

340-774-9710

spinney@doj.vi.gov
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National Sex Offender Targeting Center

United States Marshals Service

Department of Justice

Crystal Gateway North

2nd Floor

Washington, DC  20530

Mr. Floriano Whitwell, Chief National Sex Offender 

Targeting Center

Dr. Rebekah Young, Chief National Intelligence Research 

and Development Unit

Mr. John Feeney, Assistant Chief, Criminal Intelligence 

Branch

703-740-0379

703-740-5144

703-740-0500

floriano.whitwell@usdoj.gov

rebekah.young@usdoj.gov

john.feeney2@usdoj.gov
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INTERPOL Washington

U.S. National Central Bureau

Department of Justice

145 N Street NE

12th Floor

Washington, DC  20002-3393

Ms. Michelle Ford-Stepney, Deputy Assistant Director, 

Transnational Organized Crime Division

Ms. Robin Palmer, Compliance Officer,

Office of General Counsel

Mr. David Whitmire, Supervisory Analyst, Transnational 

Crime Division

202-616-1073

202-616-3587

202-305-8171

202-616-8400

michelle.ford-stepney@usdoj.gov

robin.palmer@usdoj.gov

david.whitmire@usdoj.gov

SM
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SMART Office

Office of Justice Programs

Department of Justice

810 7th Street NW

Washington, DC  20531

Dawn Doran, Deputy Director

Scott Matson, Lead Senior Policy Advisor

Lori McPherson, Senior Policy Advisor

Yahya Fouz, Senior Policy Advisor

Juli Ana Grant, Senior Policy Advisor

Stephanie Carrigg, Senior Policy Advisor

Joel Dowling, Senior Policy Advisor

Marnie Dollinger, Senior Policy Advisor

202-514-4689

202-514-4689

202-305-4560

202-353-3591

202-307-0783

202-514-7768

202-353-0487

202-305-8871

202-305-2150

202-616-2906 AskSMART@usdoj.gov

dawn.doran@ojp.usdoj.gov

scott.matson@ojp.usdoj.gov

lori.mcpherson@ojp.usdoj.gov

yahya.fouz@ojp.usdoj.gov

juliana.grant@ojp.usdoj.gov

stephanie.c.carrigg@ojp.usdoj.gov

joel.dowling@ojp.usdoj.gov

marnie.dollinger@ojp.usdoj.gov

www.smart.gov
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United States Army Crime Records Center

27130 Telegraph Road

Quantico, VA  22134

Mr. Robert Clincy, Registered Sex Offender

Program Manager

Mr. Samuel Arnn, Chief, Crime Records Division

571-305-4219

571-305-4202

571-305-4155

robert.clincy.civ@mail.mil

samuel.e.arnn.civ@mail.mil
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 N
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R Federal Bureau of Investigation

Department of Justice

1000 Custer Hollow Road

Clarksburg, WV  26306

Ms. Kimberly Lough, NCIC NSOR

304-625-3855 304-625-2924 Please forward any additions or changes to 

Ms. Lough at kklough@fbi.gov.

September 13, 2018
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